[Translation]

Quarterly Report
(The First Quarter of 144th Business Term)
From April 1, 2012 to June 30, 2012

6-6, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

Hitachi, Ltd.

[Cover]

[Document Filed]

Quarterly Report (“Shihanki Hokokusho”)

[Applicable Law]

Article 24-4-7, Paragraph 1 of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan

[Filed to]

Director, Kanto Local Finance Bureau

[Filing Date]

August 7, 2012

[Fiscal Year]

The First Quarter of 144th Business Term (from April 1, 2012 to June 30, 2012)

[Company Name]

Kabushiki Kaisha Hitachi Seisakusho

[Company Name in English] Hitachi, Ltd.
[Title and Name of

Hiroaki Nakanishi, President

Representative]
[Address of Head Office]

6-6, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

[Phone No.]

03-3258-1111

[Contact Person]

Taro Kaiho, Manager, Legal Division

[Contact Address]

6-6, Marunouchi 1-chome, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo

[Phone No.]

03-3258-1111

[Contact Person]

Taro Kaiho, Manager, Legal Division

[Place Where Available for

Tokyo Stock Exchange, Inc.

Public Inspection]

(2-1, Nihombashi Kabutocho, Chuo-ku, Tokyo)
Osaka Securities Exchange Co., Ltd.
(8-16, Kitahama 1-chome, Chuo-ku, Osaka)
Nagoya Stock Exchange, Inc.
(8-20, Sakae 3-chome, Naka-ku, Nagoya)

This is an English translation of the Quarterly Report filed with the Director of the Kanto Local Finance Bureau via
Electronic Disclosure for Investors’ NETwork (“EDINET”) pursuant to the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan.
The translation of the Confirmation Letter for the original Quarterly Report are included at the end of this document.
Unless the context indicates otherwise, the term “Company” refers to Hitachi, Ltd. and the term “Hitachi” refers to the
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries.
Unless otherwise stated, in this document, where we present information in millions or hundreds of millions of yen, we
have truncated amounts of less than one million or one hundred million, as the case may be. Accordingly, the total of figures
presented in columns or otherwise may not equal the total of the individual items. We have rounded all percentages to the
nearest percent, one-tenth of one percent or one-hundredth of one percent, as the case may be.
References in this document to the “Financial Instruments and Exchange Act” are to the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act of Japan and other laws and regulations amending and/or supplementing the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act of Japan.

Contents
Part I Information on the Company ............................................................................................................................. 1
I. Overview of the Company ................................................................................................................................... 1
1. Key Financial Data...................................................................................................................................... 1
2. Description of Business .............................................................................................................................. 1
II. Business Overview ............................................................................................................................................. 2
1. Risk Factors................................................................................................................................................. 2
2. Material Agreements, etc. ........................................................................................................................... 2
3. Analyses of Consolidated Financial Condition, Operating Results and Cash Flows ................................. 2
III. Information on the Company ............................................................................................................................ 8
1. Information on the Company’s Stock, etc. ................................................................................................. 8
(1) Total number of shares, etc. ................................................................................................................... 8
(2) Information on the stock acquisition rights, etc. .................................................................................... 8
(3) Information on moving strike convertible bonds, etc. ........................................................................... 8
(4) Information on shareholder right plans .................................................................................................. 8
(5) Changes in the total number of issued shares and the amount of common stock and other .................. 8
(6) Major shareholders ................................................................................................................................. 8
(7) Information on voting rights................................................................................................................... 9
2. Change in Senior Management ................................................................................................................. 10
IV. Financial Information ..................................................................................................................................... 10
Part II Information on Guarantors, etc. for the Company .......................................................................................... 10
[Consolidated Financial Statements] ...........................................................................................................................F-1
[Confirmation Letter] .................................................................................................................................................. A-1

Part I Information on the Company
I. Overview of the Company
1. Key Financial Data
Consolidated financial data, etc.
(Millions of yen, unless otherwise stated)
Three months ended Three months ended
Year ended
June 30, 2011
June 30, 2012
March 31, 2012
Revenues

2,150,693

2,120,715

9,665,883

41,154

48,866

557,730

2,931

7,011

347,179

24,433

(26,986)

392,581

Total Hitachi, Ltd. Stockholders’ equity

1,440,280

1,718,289

1,771,782

Total equity

2,445,087

2,710,167

2,773,995

Total assets

9,433,634

9,220,348

9,418,526

Net income attributable to Hitachi, Ltd.
stockholders per share, Basic (yen)

0.65

1.51

76.81

Net income attributable to Hitachi, Ltd.
stockholders per share, Diluted (yen)

0.61

1.45

71.86

Total Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders’ equity ratio (%)

15.3

18.6

18.8

Cash flows from operating activities

(228)

43,421

447,155

Cash flows from investing activities

(114,323)

(89,179)

(195,584)

Cash flows from financing activities

306,041

31,845

(167,838)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

744,946

602,408

619,577

Income before income taxes
Net income attributable to Hitachi, Ltd.
Comprehensive income (loss)

(Notes)

1. Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.
2. Revenues do not include the consumption tax, etc.

2. Description of Business
The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States, and affiliates are disclosed based on the definitions of those
accounting principles. The same applies to “II. Business Overview”.
There was no material change in principal businesses of Hitachi during the three months ended June 30,
2012. The Hitachi Group is comprised of the Company and 928 consolidated subsidiaries (including variable
interest entities) and 182 equity-method affiliates. Consolidated trust accounts are not included in the number of
consolidated subsidiaries.
Changes of businesses in each segment and major consolidated subsidiaries during the three months ended
June 30, 2012 were as follows.
Positioning of principal affiliated companies
Manufacturing
Sales and services
[Consolidated subsidiaries]
Others
(Reclassified)
(Reclassified)
Hitachi Maxell, Ltd., Hitachi Maxell Energy, Ltd.
Information Storage Media, Batteries
(Note) Effective from April 1, 2012, the Company eliminated the Components & Devices segment. The businesses, which
were previously included in the Components & Devices segment, have been included in the Others segment.
Segment
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II. Business Overview
1. Risk Factors
There was no new risk factor recognized during the three months ended June 30, 2012.
Material changes in the risk factors stated in the Annual Securities Report for the 143rd business term
pursuant to the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan were as follows.
Changes in “Litigation and Regulatory Investigations”
In July 2012, a Japanese subsidiary received a statement of objections from the European Commission
in respect of alleged antitrust violations relating to optical disk drives.
2. Material Agreements, etc.
No material agreements were entered into during the three months ended June 30, 2012.
3. Analyses of Consolidated Financial Condition, Operating Results and Cash Flows
(1) Outline of Business Results
Effective from April 1, 2012, the Company eliminated the Components & Devices segment. The
businesses, which were previously included in the Components & Devices segment, have been included in the
Others segment. Figures for each segment, including figures for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and for
the three months ended June 30, 2011 reflect the new segmentation.
Results of Operations
During the three months ended June 30, 2012, the U.S. economy continued to experience a moderate
recovery. However, economic turmoil continued in Europe due to sovereign debt crisis in some countries and also the
Chinese economy and other emerging nations’ economies slowed further due to lower exports to Europe.
The Japanese economy staged a recovery, supported by higher public works spending to help the reconstruction
after the Great East Japan Earthquake, and by higher consumer spending spurred by government programs, though it
continuously struggled due to the global economic slowdown and the appreciation of yen.
Under these conditions, total revenues in the three months ended June 30, 2012 decreased 1% compared
with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥2,120.7 billion due mainly to the sale of the hard disk drive
business in the year ended March 31, 2012. This decrease was partially offset by increased revenues in the Automotive
Systems Segment as global automobile demand rebounded, the Power Systems and the Construction Machinery
Segments.
Cost of sales in the three months ended June 30, 2012 decreased 1% compared with the three months
ended June 30, 2011, to ¥1,603.4 billion, and the ratio of cost of sales to revenues accounted for 76% in the three
months ended June 30, 2012, which was the same level as in the three months ended June 30, 2011.
Selling, general and administrative expenses in the three months ended June 30, 2012 decreased 4%
compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥453.6 billion and their ratio to revenues was 21% in
the three months ended June 30, 2012, compared with 22% in the three months ended June 30, 2011.
Impairment losses for long-lived assets in the three months ended June 30, 2012 increased ¥0.2 billion, to
¥0.2 billion compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011.
Restructuring charges in the three months ended June 30, 2012 increased ¥0.4 billion, to ¥0.9 billion
compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011.
Interest income in the three months ended June 30, 2012 decreased ¥0.1 billion, to ¥3.6 billion compared
with the three months ended June 30, 2011.
Dividends income in the three months ended June 30, 2012 decreased ¥0.4 billion, to ¥2.6 billion
compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011.
Other income in the three months ended June 30, 2012 was ¥3.1 billion, a ¥2.8 billion decrease compared
with the three months ended June 30, 2011, due primarily to decrease of net gain on sale and disposal of rental
assets and other property.
Interest charges in the three month ended June 30, 2012 was ¥7.0 billion, almost the same as the three
months ended June 30, 2011.
Other deductions in the three months ended June 30, 2012 were ¥12.8 billion, a ¥8.6 billion increase
compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011 due primarily to increase of exchange loss.
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Equity in net loss of affiliated companies in the three months ended June 30, 2012 decreased ¥9.3 billion
compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥3.0 billion, due mainly to improvement of profitability
at the Company’s equity-method affiliated company in the semiconductor industry.
Income before income taxes in the three months ended June 30, 2012 increased 19% compared with the
three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥48.8 billion.
Income taxes amounted to ¥28.4 billion in the three months ended June 30, 2012, an increase of ¥3.5
billion compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011.
Net income in the three months ended June 30, 2012 increased 25% compared with the three months
ended June 30, 2011, to ¥20.3 billion.
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests amounted to ¥13.3 billion in the three months ended
June 30, 2012, which was the same level as in the three months ended June 30, 2011.
As a result of the foregoing, net income attributable to Hitachi, Ltd. in the three months ended June 30,
2012 increased 139% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥7.0 billion.
Operations by Segment
The following is an overview of Hitachi’s results of operations by segment. Revenues for each segment
include intersegment transactions.
(Information & Telecommunication Systems)
Revenues increased 6% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥371.6 billion, due to
higher sales in both software and services business and hardware business.
Segment profit worsened ¥3.5 billion, resulting in a loss of ¥1.4 billion, compared with the three months
ended June 30, 2011, due to recording loss in software and services business owing to lower projects
profitability. This worsening is partially offset by improvement of profitability in hardware business.
(Power Systems)
Revenues increased 15% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥190.5 billion. While
nuclear power generation systems recorded lower sales, thermal power generation systems performed strongly.
The taking over of the transmission and distribution business of Japan AE Power Systems Corporation in April
2012 also contributed to increase in revenues.
Segment profit improved ¥5.7 billion, resulting in a profit of ¥2.4 billion, compared with the three months
ended June 30, 2011. This improvement resulted from higher earnings due to increased revenues, as well as the
absence of additional costs related to coal-fired thermal power systems in the overseas market recorded in the
three months ended June 30, 2011.
(Social Infrastructure & Industrial Systems)
Revenues increased 4% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥238.0 billion. This
increase mainly reflected strong growth in plant-related equipment and construction in Japan and higher sales of
the elevators and escalators and railway systems in Japan, despite lower sales of industrial equipment for the
manufacturing industry.
Segment profit worsened ¥3.0 billion, resulting in a loss of ¥2.0 billion, compared with the three months
ended June 30, 2011, due to lower earnings in industrial equipment for the manufacturing industry.
(Electronic Systems & Equipment)
Revenues were ¥245.2 billion, which was the same level as in the three months ended June 30, 2011.
While the sales of Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation’s medical analysis systems and Hitachi Medical
Corporation’s ultrasound diagnostic systems increased, sales at Hitachi Kokusai Electric Inc. declined.
Segment profit increased 33% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥9.5 billion, due to
growth in semiconductor manufacturing equipment for mobile-related devices and in medical analysis systems at
Hitachi High-Technologies Corporation.
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(Construction Machinery)
Revenues increased 15% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥199.0 billion. This
increase reflects strong sales of hydraulic excavators in other emerging markets and North America and higher
sales of mining machinery in Asia and Oceania, despite lower demand in China.
Segment profit increased 28% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥14.1 billion, due
to the higher revenues and cost reduction.
(High Functional Materials & Components)
Revenues decreased 1% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥343.1 bullion, due to
lower sales at Hitachi Cable, Ltd. owing to downward pressure on sales prices resulting from a drop in the price of
copper and the withdrawal from unprofitable businesses. This decrease was partially offset by strong sales of Hitachi
Metals, Ltd.’s automotive-related products.
Segment profit increased 3% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥20.0 billion, due
mainly to cost reduction.
(Automotive Systems)
Revenues increased 23% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥205.0 billion, as a
result of a recovery from the Great East Japan Earthquake and growing global automobile demand mainly in emerging
markets.
Segment profit increased 220% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥9.3 billion, due
mainly to the higher revenues and cost reduction.
(Digital Media & Consumer Products)
Revenues decreased 6% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥218.5 billion, due
mainly to lower demand for flat-panel TVs and lower sales from optical disk drive-related products owing to the
impact of the flooding in Thailand and lower sales prices.
Segment profit decreased 99% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥17 million, due
mainly to falling in sales prices of room air conditioners and refrigerators, etc. mainly in the Japanese market.
(Financial Services)
Revenues increased 2% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥94.6 billion, due to a
strong performance in the overseas business at Hitachi Capital Corporation, particularly in Asia.
Segment profit increased 5% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥7.2 billion, due to
higher earnings at Hitachi Capital Corporation owing to reduction of credit costs.
(Others)
Revenues decreased 33% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥278.5 billion, due
mainly to the sale of hard disk drives business in the year ended March 31, 2012.
Segment profit decreased 10% compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥8.9 billion.
Revenues by Market
Revenues in Japan in the three months ended June 30, 2012 were ¥1,204.6 billion, an increase of 2%
compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, due mainly to higher revenues in the Information &
Telecommunication Systems, the Power Systems and the Automotive Systems segments, mainly reflecting a
recovery from the Great East Japan Earthquake.
Overseas revenues were ¥916.0 billion, a decrease of 6% compared with the three months ended June 30,
2011, due mainly to much lower revenues in the Others Segment owing to the impact of selling the hard disk
drives business. This decrease was partially offset by higher revenues in the Construction Machinery Segment
owing to strong sales of hydraulic excavators and mining machinery in emerging markets, and in the Automotive
Systems Segment owing to growth in automobile demand worldwide.
As a result, the ratio of overseas revenues to total revenues was 43% in the three months ended June 30,
2012, compared with 45% in the three months ended June 30, 2011.
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(2) Summary of Financial Condition, etc.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
During the three months ended June 30, 2012, there was no major changes in the Company’s policies of
maintaining liquidity and ensuring funds, efforts for improvement in fund management efficiency, and ideas
regarding funding sources and fundraising.
Cash Flows
(Cash flows from operating activities)
Net income in the three months ended June 30, 2012 increased ¥4.1 billion compared with the three
months ended June 30, 2011, to ¥20.3 billion, due primarily to increased operating income. Increase in
inventories in the three months ended June 30, 2012 was ¥133.1 billion owing to seasonal reasons, a ¥68.9
billion decrease compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011 due mainly to influence of delay in
shipment of products and customers’ acceptance inspection caused by the Great East Japan Earthquake in the three
months ended June 30, 2011. As a result of the foregoing, cash flows from operating activities recorded net cash
inflow of ¥43.4 billion in the three months ended June 30, 2012, compared to the outflow of ¥0.2 billion in the
three months ended June 30, 2011.
(Cash flows from investing activities)
A net sum of ¥107.5 billion in the three months ended June 30, 2012 was recorded as investments mainly
related to property, plant and equipment, where the collection of investments in leases, the proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment and the proceeds from disposal of tangible assets and software to be
leased were subtracted from the amount of the capital expenditures, the purchase of intangible assets and the
purchase of tangible assets and software to be leased. This net sum increased by ¥41.0 billion compared with the
three months ended June 30, 2011. Purchase of investments in securities and shares of newly consolidated
subsidiaries in the three months ended June 30, 2012 decreased ¥48.9 billion compared with the three months
ended June 30, 2011, to ¥4.2 billion, due primarily to absence of large purchase such as the purchase of shares of
Vantec Corporation, etc. in the three months ended June 30, 2011. As a result of the foregoing, cash flows from
investing activities recorded net cash outflow of ¥89.1 billion in the three months ended June 30, 2012, a
decrease of ¥25.1 billion compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011.
(Cash flows from financing activities)
Net increase in short-term debt was ¥93.0 billion due to an increase in working capital owing to seasonal
reason. This was a decrease of ¥298.3 billion compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011, due
primarily to the issuance of commercial paper ready to cope with jittery credit markets after the Great East Japan
Earthquake in the three months ended June 30, 2011. A net sum of ¥16.4 billion in the three months ended June
30, 2012 was recorded as payments related to long-term debt, where the payments on long-term debt were
subtracted from the proceeds from long-term debt. This net outflow decreased by ¥47.7 billion compared with
the three months ended June 30, 2011. As a result of the foregoing, cash flows from financing activities recorded
net cash inflow of ¥31.8 billion in the three months ended June 30, 2012, a decrease of ¥274.1 billion compared
with the three months ended June 30, 2011.
As a result of the foregoing, in the three months ended June 30, 2012, cash and cash equivalents was
¥602.4 billion as of June 30, 2012, a decrease of ¥17.1 billion from March 31, 2012. Free cash flows, the sum of
cash flows from operating and investing activities, were an outflow of ¥45.7 billion in the three months ended
June 30, 2012, a decrease of ¥68.7 billion compared with the three months ended June 30, 2011.
Assets, Liabilities and Equity
Total assets as of June 30, 2012 were ¥9,220.3 billion, a decrease of ¥198.1 billion from March 31, 2012.
This was due mainly to a decrease in accounts receivables owing to seasonal reasons, etc.
Total interest-bearing debt as of June 30, 2012, which is the sum of short-term debt, long-term debt and
non-recourse borrowings of consolidated securitization entities, was ¥2,469.5 billion, a ¥73.0 billion increase
from March 31, 2012. This was due mainly to an increase in working capital because of seasonal reasons such as
bonus payment.
Noncontrolling interests as of June 30, 2012 decreased by ¥10.3 billion from March 31, 2012, to ¥991.8
billion.
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Total Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders’ equity as of June 30, 2012 decreased by ¥53.4 billion from March 31,
2012, to ¥1,718.2 billion, due mainly to an increase in the accumulated other comprehensive loss owing to
appreciation of the yen and stock market slump. As a result, the ratio of stockholders’ equity to total assets was
18.6%, compared with 18.8% as of March 31, 2012. The ratio of the interest-bearing debt to the total equity (the
sum of total Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders’ equity and noncontrolling interests) increased to 0.91, compared with
0.86 as of March 31, 2012, due mainly to an increase in the short-term debt.
(3) Challenges Facing Hitachi Group

1) Business and Financial Condition
There was no material change in Hitachi’s business strategy during the three months ended June 30, 2012.
2) Fundamental Policy on the Conduct of Persons Influencing Decision on the Company’s Financial and
Business Policies
The Group invests a great deal of business resources in fundamental research and in the development of
market-leading products and businesses that will bear fruit in the future, and realizing the benefits from these
management policies requires that they be continued for a set period of time. For this purpose, the Company
keeps its shareholders and investors well informed of not just the business results for each period but also of the
Company’s business policies for creating value in the future.
The Company does not deny the significance of the vitalization of business activities and performance that
can be brought about through a change in management control, but it recognizes the necessity of determining
the impact on company value and the interests of all shareholders of the buying activities and buyout proposals
of parties attempting to acquire a large share of stock of the Company or a Group company by duly examining
the business description, future business plans, past investment activities, and other necessary aspects of such a
party.
There is no party that is currently attempting to acquire a large share of the Company’s stocks nor is there
a specific threat, neither does the Company intend to implement specified so-called anti-takeover measures in
advance of the appearance of such a party, but the Company does understand that it is one of the natural duties
bestowed upon it by the shareholders and investors to continuously monitor the state of trading of the
Company’s stock and then to immediately take what the Company deems to be the best action in the event of
the appearance of a party attempting to purchase a large share of the Company’s stock. In particular, together
with outside experts, the Company will evaluate the buyout proposal of the party and hold negotiations with the
buyer, and if the Company deems that said buyout will not maintain the Company’s value and is not in the best
interest of the shareholders, then the Company will quickly determine the necessity, content, etc., of specific
countermeasures and prepare to implement them. The same response will also be taken in the event a party
attempts to acquire a large percentage of the shares of a Group company.
(4) Research and Development
There was no material changes in the research and development of the Hitachi Group (the Company and
consolidated subsidiaries) stated in the Annual Securities Report for the 143rd business term pursuant to the
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan. The Hitachi Group’s R&D expenditures in the three
months ended June 30, 2012 were ¥79.0 billion, 3.7% of revenues. A breakdown of R&D expenditures by
segment is shown below.
(Billions of yen)
Three months ended
Segment
June 30, 2012
Information & Telecommunication Systems
19.0
Power Systems
4.4
Social Infrastructure & Industrial Systems
5.2
Electronic Systems & Equipment
9.6
Construction Machinery
3.9
High Functional Materials & Components
10.7
Automotive Systems
13.5
Digital Media & Consumer Products
4.9
Financial Services
0.0
Others
1.4
Corporate
5.9
Total
79.0
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(5) Forward-Looking Statements
Certain statements found in “3. Analyses of Consolidated Financial Position, Operating Results and Cash
Flows” and other descriptions in this report may constitute “forward-looking statements” as defined in the U.S.
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such “forward-looking statements” reflect management’s
current views with respect to certain future events and financial performance and include any statement that does
not directly relate to any historical or current fact. Words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “expect,” “estimate,”
“forecast,” “intend,” “plan,” “project” and similar expressions which indicate future events and trends may
identify “forward-looking statements.” Such statements are based on currently available information and are
subject to various risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected
or implied in the “forward-looking statements” and from historical trends. Certain “forward-looking statements”
are based upon current assumptions of future events which may not prove to be accurate. Undue reliance should
not be placed on “forward-looking statements,” as such statements speak only as of the date of this report.
Factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected or implied in any
“forward-looking statement” and from historical trends include, but are not limited to:
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

economic conditions, including consumer spending and plant and equipment investment in Hitachi’s major
markets, particularly Japan, Asia, the United States and Europe, as well as levels of demand in the major
industrial sectors Hitachi serves, including, without limitation, the information, electronics, automotive,
construction and financial sectors;
exchange rate fluctuations of the yen against other currencies in which Hitachi makes significant sales or in which
Hitachi’s assets and liabilities are denominated, particularly against the U.S. dollar and the euro;
uncertainty as to Hitachi’s ability to access, or access on favorable terms, liquidity or long-term financing;
uncertainty as to general market price levels for equity securities, declines in which may require Hitachi to write
down equity securities that it holds;
the potential for significant losses on Hitachi’s investments in equity method affiliates;
increased commoditization of information technology products and digital media-related products and
intensifying price competition for such products, particularly in the Digital Media & Consumer Products
segments;
uncertainty as to Hitachi’s ability to continue to develop and market products that incorporate new technologies
on a timely and cost-effective basis and to achieve market acceptance for such products;
rapid technological innovation;
the possibility of cost fluctuations during the lifetime of, or cancellation of, long-term contracts for which Hitachi
uses the percentage-of-completion method to recognize revenue from sales;
fluctuations in the price of raw materials including, without limitation, petroleum and other materials, such as
copper, steel, aluminum, synthetic resins, rare metals and rare-earth minerals, or shortages of materials, parts and
components;
fluctuations in product demand and industry capacity;
uncertainty as to Hitachi’s ability to implement measures to reduce the potential negative impact of fluctuations in
product demand, exchange rates and/or price of raw materials or shortages of materials, parts and components;
uncertainty as to Hitachi’s ability to achieve the anticipated benefits of its strategy to strengthen its Social
Innovation Business;
uncertainty as to the success of restructuring efforts to improve management efficiency by divesting or otherwise
exiting underperforming businesses and to strengthen competitiveness;
uncertainty as to the success of cost reduction measures;
general socioeconomic and political conditions and the regulatory and trade environment of countries where
Hitachi conducts business, particularly Japan, Asia, the United States and Europe, including, without limitation,
direct or indirect restrictions by other nations on imports and differences in commercial and business customs
including, without limitation, contract terms and conditions and labor relations;
uncertainty as to the success of alliances upon which Hitachi depends, some of which Hitachi may not control,
with other corporations in the design and development of certain key products;
uncertainty as to Hitachi’s access to, or ability to protect, certain intellectual property rights, particularly those
related to electronics and data processing technologies;
uncertainty as to the outcome of litigation, regulatory investigations and other legal proceedings of which the
Company, its subsidiaries or its equity method affiliates have become or may become parties;
the possibility of incurring expenses resulting from any defects in products or services of Hitachi;
the possibility of disruption of Hitachi’s operations by earthquakes, tsunamis or other natural disasters;
uncertainty as to Hitachi’s ability to maintain the integrity of its information systems, as well as Hitachi’s ability
to protect its confidential information or that of its customers;
uncertainty as to the accuracy of key assumptions Hitachi uses to evaluate its significant employee benefit-related
costs; and
uncertainty as to Hitachi’s ability to attract and retain skilled personnel.

The factors listed above are not all-inclusive and are in addition to other factors contained elsewhere in this
report and in other materials published by Hitachi.
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III. Information on the Company
1. Information on the Company’s Stock, etc.
(1) Total number of shares, etc.
1) Total number of shares

Common stock

Total number of shares authorized to be issued
(shares)
10,000,000,000

Total

10,000,000,000

Class

2) Issued shares
Class

Number of shares
issued as of the end
of fiscal year (shares)
(June 30, 2012)

Number of shares
issued as of the
filing date (shares)
(August 7, 2012)

Common
stock

4,637,813,706

4,637,823,168

Total

4,637,813,706

4,637,823,168

(Note)

Stock exchange on which
the Company is listed
Tokyo, Osaka, Nagoya

Description
The number of
shares per one unit of
shares is 1,000
shares.

－

－

The number of shares under the “Number of shares issued as of the filing date” column does not
include shares issued through the exercise of stock acquisition rights from August 1, 2012 to the filing
date.

(2) Information on the stock acquisition rights, etc.
Not applicable.
(3) Information on moving strike convertible bonds, etc.
Not applicable.
(4) Information on shareholder right plans
Not applicable.
(5) Changes in the total number of issued shares and the amount of common stock and other

Date

Change in the Balance of the Change in Balance of Change in Balance of
total number total number of common
common
capital
capital
of issued
stock
stock
reserve
reserve
issued shares
shares
(Millions of (Millions of (Millions of (Millions of
(shares)
(shares)
yen)
yen)
yen)
yen)

From April 1, 2012
(Note)
28,389 4,637,813,706
4
427,780
4
145,746
to June 30, 2012
(Note) Changes due to conversion of stock acquisition rights into stocks. As a result of conversion of stock
acquisition rights into stocks during the period from July 1, 2012 to July 31, 2012, the number of

issued shares, the amount of common stock and the amount of capital reserve increased 9,462
shares, ¥1.5 million and ¥1.5 million respectively.

(6) Major shareholders
Not applicable.
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(7) Information on voting rights
Information on voting rights as of March 31, 2012 is stated in this item because the Company does not
identify the number of voting rights as of June 30, 2012 due to the lack of information on the number of the
Company’s shares held by the entity which the Company holds one quarter or more of all voting rights of such
entity as of June 30, 2012.
1) Issued shares
Classification

Number of shares (shares)

Shares without voting right
Shares with restricted voting
right (treasury stock, etc.)
Shares with restricted voting
right (others)
Shares with full voting right
(treasury stock, etc.)
Shares with full voting right
(others)
Shares less than one unit

－

－

－

－

－

－

－

－

－

－

－

4,607,089

－

－

－

－

－

4,607,089

－

Common stock

2,914,000

Common stock

4,607,089,000

Common stock

27,782,317

Number of issued shares

4,637,785,317

Total number of voting rights
(Note)

(As of March 31, 2012)
Number of voting
Description
rights

－

The “Shares with full voting right (others)” column includes 26,000 shares registered in the name of
Japan Securities Depository Center, Incorporated (account for managing stocks whose shareholders
have not transferred titles) and 26 voting rights for those shares.
2) Treasury stock, etc.

Name of
shareholder

Hitachi, Ltd.
Aoyama Special
Steel Co., Ltd.
ISHII
DENKOSHA
Co., Ltd.
SAITA
KOUGYOU CO.,
LTD.

Address

6-6, Marunouchi 1-chome,
Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo
9-11, Shinkawa 2-chome,
Chuo-ku, Tokyo
1-11, Oroshishinmachi
3-chome, Higashi-ku,
Niigata-shi, Niigata
5-3, Takinogawa 5-chome,
Kita-ku, Tokyo

Mizuho Co., Inc.

9-5, Minami-Shinagawa
4-chome, Shinagawa-ku,
Tokyo
3268, Nagaoka,
Ibarakimachi,
Higashiibaraki-gun, Ibaraki
15-1, Konan 2-chome,
Minato-ku, Tokyo
4-1, Koishikawa 5-chome,
Bunkyo-ku, Tokyo

Total

－

NIKKO SHOKAI
CO., LTD.
Nitto Jidosha
Kiki K.K.
Hitachi Koki Co.,
Ltd.

Number of
Number of
shares held
shares held
under the
under own name names of
(shares)
others
(shares)
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(As of March 31, 2012)
Ownership
percentage to
Total shares
the total
held (shares)
number of
issued shares
(%)

2,620,000

－

2,620,000

0.06

10,000

－

10,000

0.00

1,000

－

1,000

0.00

88,000

－

88,000

0.00

5,000

－

5,000

0.00

52,000

－

52,000

0.00

123,000

－

123,000

0.00

15,000

－

15,000

0.00

2,914,000

－

2,914,000

0.06

2. Change in Senior Management
There has been no change in senior management from the filing date of the Annual Securities Report for the
143rd business term pursuant to the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan to June 30, 2012.
IV. Financial Information
Refer to the consolidated financial statements incorporated in this Quarterly Report.

Part II Information on Guarantors, etc. for the Company
Not applicable.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Hitachi, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012
Millions of yen
June 30,
March 31,
2012
2012

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 5)
Short-term investments (note 3)
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful receivables of
\29,929 million as of June 30, 2012 and
\31,182 million as of March 31, 2012:
Notes (notes 5, 12 and 19)
Accounts (notes 5 and 19)
Investments in leases (notes 5 and 19)
Current portion of financial assets transferred
to consolidated securitization entities (notes 5 and 19)
Inventories (note 4)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Investments and advances, including affiliated companies (note 3)
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets (note 6):
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Total intangible assets
Financial assets transferred to
consolidated securitization entities (notes 5 and 19)
Other assets (note 19)
Total assets
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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602,408
11,852

619,577
11,562

133,279
1,980,925
226,162

117,951
2,225,519
235,744

76,908
1,529,068
463,138
5,023,740

86,071
1,413,252
452,510
5,162,186

687,555

744,493

470,775
1,853,240
5,109,395
100,775
7,534,185
5,489,100
2,045,085

464,093
1,847,292
5,109,865
90,687
7,511,937
5,486,399
2,025,538

209,508
394,441
603,949

214,707
395,255
609,962

187,931
672,088
9,220,348

205,411
670,936
9,418,526

Millions of yen
June 30,
2012

March 31,
2012

628,251
441,115

531,446
384,110

75,351

97,004

21,577
1,225,317
780,544
25,131
393,279
472,362

24,025
1,301,759
896,096
75,217
362,895
438,321

4,062,927

4,110,873

1,199,901

1,248,851

124,902
872,668
249,783

135,043
890,977
258,787

6,510,181

6,644,531

427,780
596,218
1,225,945
(530,195)
(1,459)

427,775
600,243
1,242,110
(496,896)
(1,450)

Total Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders' equity
Noncontrolling interests (note 11)
Total equity

1,718,289
991,878
2,710,167

1,771,782
1,002,213
2,773,995

Total liabilities and equity

9,220,348

9,418,526

Liabilities and Equity
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of non-recourse borrowings
of consolidated securitization entities (note 5)

Trade payables:
Notes
Accounts
Accrued expenses (note 12)
Income taxes
Advances received
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Non-recourse borrowings of consolidated
securitization entities (note 5)
Retirement and severance benefits
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (note 12)
Equity (note 11):
Common stock (note 8)
Capital surplus
Legal reserve and retained earnings (note 10)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury stock, at cost (note 9)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hitachi, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Millions of yen
Revenues

Cost of sales
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Impairment losses for long-lived assets
Restructuring charges (note 13)
Interest income
Dividends income
Other income (note 14)
Interest charges
Other deductions (note 14)
Equity in net loss of affiliated companies
Income before income taxes

Income taxes
Net income

Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income attributable to Hitachi, Ltd.

2012

2011

2,120,715

2,150,693

(1,603,444)
(453,697)

(1,626,010)
(472,280)

(252)
(967)
3,680
2,624
3,153
(7,051)
(12,889)
(3,006)

(31)
(562)
3,850
3,058
6,030
(7,033)
(4,237)
(12,324)

48,866

41,154

(28,486)

(24,889)

20,380

16,265

13,369
7,011

13,334
2,931

Net income attributable to Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders per share (note 15):
Basic
Diluted

Yen
1.51
1.45

0.65
0.61

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Millions of yen
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss) arising during the period
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Pension liability adjustments
Net unrealized holding loss on available-for-sale securities
Cash flow hedges

2012
20,380

2011
16,265

(38,669)
15,538
(27,257)
3,022

(3,470)
13,761
(2,929)
806

Total other comprehensive income (loss) arising during the period
Comprehensive income (loss)
Less comprehensive income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Hitachi, Ltd

(47,366)
(26,986)
(99)
(26,887)

8,168
24,433
9,422
15,011

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Hitachi, Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
Millions of yen

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Impairment losses for long-lived assets
Equity in net loss of affiliated companies
Gain on sale of investments in securities and other
Impairment of investments in securities
Gain on disposal of rental assets and other property
Decrease in receivables
Increase in inventories
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets
Decrease in payables
Decrease in accrued expenses and retirement and severance benefits
Decrease in accrued income taxes
Increase in other current liabilities
Net change in lease receivables related to the Company's and its subsidiaries' products
Other
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

2012

2011

20,380

16,265

70,551
28,003
252
3,006
(633)
1,959
(1,878)
222,943
(133,167)
5,052
(60,792)
(118,490)
(31,238)
46,378
7,895
(16,800)

87,297
27,866
31
12,324
(605)
657
(5,784)
221,642
(202,088)
(31,853)
(42,592)
(111,920)
(26,451)
40,843
12,377
1,763

43,421

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of tangible assets and software to be leased
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of tangible assets and software to be leased
Collection of investments in leases
Purchase of investments in securities and shares of newly consolidated subsidiaries
Proceeds from sale of investments in securities and shares of consolidated
subsidiaries resulting in deconsolidation
Other
Net cash used in investing activities

(228)

(89,578)
(20,703)
(84,949)
9,835
3,606
74,216
(4,252)

(62,458)
(21,153)
(64,596)
9,064
5,021
67,563
(53,193)

4,098
18,548

6,996
(1,567)

(89,179)

(114,323)

93,093
96,424
(112,847)
1,619
(23,215)
(9,485)
(28)
2
(13,664)
(54)

391,415
54,700
(118,842)
170
(13,590)
(6,496)
(25)
4
(1,236)
(59)

Net cash provided by financing activities

31,845

306,041

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

(3,256)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in short-term debt, net
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt
Proceeds from sale of common stock by subsidiaries
Dividends paid to Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders
Dividends paid to noncontrolling interests
Acquisition of common stock for treasury
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock
Purchase of shares of consolidated subsidiaries from noncontrolling interest holders
Other

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

(17,169)
619,577
602,408

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(1,354)
190,136
554,810
744,946

HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

(1)

Nature of Operations
Hitachi, Ltd. (the Company) is a Japanese corporation, whose principal office is located in Japan. The
Company’s and its subsidiaries’ businesses are diverse, and include information and telecommunication
systems, power systems, social infrastructure and industrial systems, electronic systems and equipment,
construction machinery, high functional materials and components, automotive systems, digital media and
consumer products, financial services, and others including logistics services.

(2)

Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries keep their books of account in accordance with the
financial accounting standards of Japan, and its foreign subsidiaries in accordance with those of the
countries of their domicile.
The consolidated financial statements presented herein have been prepared to reflect the
adjustments which are necessary to conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Management of the Company has made a number of estimates and
assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities to prepare these financial statements. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
(b)

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, its majority-owned
subsidiaries and all variable interest entities (VIEs) for which the Company or any of its
consolidated entities is the primary beneficiary. The definition of a VIE is included in Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 810, “Consolidation.” This guidance addresses how a business
enterprise should evaluate whether it has a controlling financial interest in an entity through means
other than voting rights and accordingly should consolidate the entity. The consolidated financial
statements include accounts of certain subsidiaries whose closing dates differ from June 30 by 93
days or less to either comply with local statutory requirements or facilitate timely reporting. There
have been no significant transactions, which would materially affect the Company’s financial
position and results of operations, with such subsidiaries during the period from their closing dates
to June 30. Intercompany accounts and significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation.
Investments in corporate joint ventures and affiliated companies, where the Company has the
ability to exercise significant influence over operational and financial policies generally by holding
20 - 50% ownership, are accounted for under the equity method. Investments where the Company
does not have significant influence are accounted for under the cost method.

(c)

Income Taxes
The Company computes interim income tax provisions by applying an estimated annual effective
tax rate, which is reasonably determined considering the factors that will affect the tax rate
including non-taxable transactions, tax credits and valuation allowances, to income before income
taxes in accordance with the provisions for interim reporting included in ASC 740, “Income
Taxes.” The effect of a change in judgment about the realization of deferred tax assets is
recognized in the interim period in which the change occurs.
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HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

(d)

Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated up to August 7, 2012, the date on which its consolidated financial
statements were available to be issued in accordance with the provisions of ASC855, "Subsequent
Events."

(e)

A Change in Accounting Estimate Effected by a Change in Accounting Principle
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Property, plant and equipment are principally
depreciated using the straight-line method, mainly over the following estimated useful lives:
Buildings
Buildings and building equipment
Structures
Machinery and equipment
Machinery
Vehicles
Tools, furniture and fixtures

3 to 50 years
7 to 60 years
4 to 15 years
4 to 7 years
2 to 20 years

Effective April 1, 2012, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries changed their depreciation
method from the declining-balance method to the straight-line method.
Based on the 2012 Mid-term Management Plan which covers a three year period ending March 31,
2013, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries have been making revisions to their business
portfolio to move away from high volatility businesses, strengthen and focus on the Social
Innovation businesses which aim to produce stable operating results over a long period of time. In
developing their global business strategies, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are
accelerating construction of their global production systems to capture the expanding demand for
the Social Innovation businesses. Accordingly, domestic property, plant and equipment will be
operated consistently and utilization of the domestic property, plant and equipment will be also
more consistent than before.
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries believe that the new method is preferable as it better
reflects the pattern of consumption of the benefits derived from those assets and makes a better
cost allocation to match revenues generated by those assets during their estimated useful lives. In
accordance with the “Change in Accounting Estimate” provisions of ASC 250, “Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections,” the change in depreciation method is accounted for on a
prospective basis from the beginning of the period of change and results for prior periods have not
been restated.
The effect of the change was to increase income before income taxes by ¥1,585 million and net
income by ¥1,077 million, or ¥0.23 per share(basic) and ¥0.22 per share(diluted) for the three
months ended June 30, 2012.
The effect on segment information is stated in note 21.
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HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

(3)

Investments in Securities and Affiliated Companies
Short-term investments as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012 are as follows:
Millions of yen
June 30,
March 31,
2012
2012
Investments in securities:
Available-for-sale securities
Government debt securities
5,302
4,452
Corporate debt securities
6,358
6,954
Other securities
120
84
Held-to-maturity securities
72
72
11,852
11,562
Investments and advances, including affiliated companies as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012 are
as follows:
Millions of yen
June 30,
March 31,
2012
2012
Investments in securities:
Available-for-sale securities
Equity securities
181,467
220,491
Government debt securities
331
329
Corporate debt securities
22,084
24,732
Other securities
7,385
7,467
Held-to-maturity securities
319
321
Cost-method investments
55,733
56,174
Investments in affiliated companies
296,989
309,733
Advances and other
123,247
125,246
687,555
744,493
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HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

The following tables are summaries of the amortized cost basis, gross unrealized holding gains, gross
unrealized holding losses and aggregate fair value of available-for-sale securities by the consolidated
balance sheet classifications as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012.
Millions of yen
June 30, 2012
Amortized
Gross
Gross
Aggregate
cost basis
gains
losses
fair value
Short-term investments:
Government debt securities
5,302
5,302
Corporate debt securities
5,821
542
5
6,358
Other securities
119
1
120
11,242
543
5
11,780
Investments and advances:
Equity securities
154,803
45,911
19,247
181,467
Government debt securities
310
21
331
Corporate debt securities
20,757
1,515
188
22,084
Other securities
7,359
88
62
7,385
183,229
47,535
19,497
211,267
194,471
48,078
19,502
223,047

Amortized
cost basis
Short-term investments:
Government debt securities
Corporate debt securities
Other securities
Investments and advances:
Equity securities
Government debt securities
Corporate debt securities
Other securities

Gross
gains

Millions of yen
March 31, 2012
Gross
Aggregate
losses
fair value

4,452
6,481
83
11,016

490
1
491

17
17

4,452
6,954
84
11,490

155,908
311
23,201
7,379
186,799
197,815

65,899
18
1,679
133
67,729
68,220

1,316
148
45
1,509
1,526

220,491
329
24,732
7,467
253,019
264,509
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HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

The following tables are summaries of gross unrealized holding losses on available-for-sale securities
and the fair value of the related securities, aggregated by investment category and length of time that
individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, as of June 30, 2012 and March
31, 2012.
Millions of yen
June 30, 2012
Less than 12 months
12 months or longer
Aggregate
Gross
Aggregate
Gross
fair value
losses
fair value
losses
Short-term investments:
Corporate debt securities
1,398
2
997
3
Investments and advances:
Equity securities
Corporate debt securities
Other securities

74,496
4,871
79,367
80,765

18,095
151
18,246
18,248

Investments and advances:
Equity securities
Corporate debt securities
Other securities

1,152
37
62
1,251
1,254

Millions of yen
March 31, 2012
12 months or longer
Aggregate
Gross
fair value
losses

Less than 12 months
Aggregate
Gross
fair value
losses
Short-term investments:
Corporate debt securities

3,508
2,772
183
6,463
7,460

2,847

9

1,691

8

5,509
7,227
12,736
15,583

535
118
653
662

3,832
2,770
202
6,804
8,495

781
30
45
856
864

Equity securities consist primarily of stocks issued by Japanese and the U.S. listed companies.
Government debt securities consist primarily of Japan treasury bonds. Corporate debt securities consist
primarily of structured bonds. Other securities consist primarily of investment funds.
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HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

The following table represents the purchases, proceeds from the sale, gross realized gains on the sale,
and gross realized losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities for the three months ended June 30,
2012 and 2011.
Three months
ended
June 30,
2012
1,520
726
521
-

Purchases
Proceeds from the sale
Gross realized gains on the sale
Gross realized losses on the sale

Millions of yen
Three months
ended
June 30,
2011
13,167
13
5
-

The contractual maturities of debt securities and other securities classified as investments and advances
in the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2012 are as follows:
Held-tomaturity
Due within five years
Due after five years through ten years
Due after ten years

319
319

Millions of yen
Availablefor-sale
Total
13,659
2,519
13,622
29,800

13,978
2,519
13,622
30,119

Expected redemptions may differ from contractual maturities because some of these securities are
redeemable at the option of the issuers.
The aggregate carrying amounts of cost-method investments which were not evaluated for impairment
as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012 were ¥54,779 million and ¥56,166 million, respectively,
mainly because it was not practicable to estimate the fair value of the investments due to lack of a
market price and difficulty in estimating fair value without incurring excessive cost and the Company
did not identify any events or changes in circumstances that might have had a significant adverse effect
on their fair value.
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HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

(4)

Inventories
Inventories as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012 are summarized as follows:

Finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials

(5)

June 30,
2012
549,692
710,730
268,646
1,529,068

Millions of yen
March 31,
2012
538,634
606,228
268,390
1,413,252

Securitizations
The Company and certain subsidiaries securitize certain financial assets, such as lease, trade and
mortgage loans receivable, and arrange other forms of asset-backed financing for the purpose of
providing diversified and stable fund raising as part of their ongoing securitization activities.
Historically, they have used Hitachi-supported and third-party Special Purpose Entities (SPEs) to
execute securitization transactions funded with commercial paper and other borrowings. These
securitization transactions are similar to those used by many financial institutions.
Investors in these entities only have recourse to the assets owned by the entity and not to their general
credit, unless noted below. The Company and certain subsidiaries do not provide non-contractual
support to SPEs and do not have implicit support arrangements with any SPEs. The majority of their
involvement with SPEs related to the securitization activities are assisting in the formation and
financing of an entity, providing limited credit enhancements, servicing the assets and receiving fees
for services provided.
A portion of these lease, trade and mortgage loans receivable is transferred to SPEs sponsored by
financial institutions, which operate those SPEs as a part of their businesses. Accordingly, the amount
of assets transferred by the Company and its subsidiaries is considerably small compared to the total
assets of the SPEs sponsored by these financial institutions that purchase a large amount of assets from
entities other than the Company and its subsidiaries. In certain transactions, investors have recourse
with a scope that is considerably limited.
The transferred assets have similar risks and characteristics to the Company’s and certain subsidiaries’
receivables recorded on the consolidated balance sheets. Accordingly, the performance, such as
collections or expected credit loss, of these transferred assets has been similar to the receivables
recorded on the consolidated balance sheets for the Company and certain subsidiaries; however, the
blended performance of the pools of transferred assets reflects the eligibility screening requirements
that the Company and certain subsidiaries apply to determine which receivables are selected for
transfer. Therefore, the blended performance may differ from receivables recorded on the consolidated
balance sheets.
Consolidated SPEs
The Company consolidated SPEs mainly because the Company has both the power to direct the
activities of the SPEs that most significantly impact the SPEs’ economic performance and the
obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits that could potentially be significant to the
SPEs. The consolidated SPEs are mainly trusts for the securitizations of lease receivables and mortgage
loans receivable.
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HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

The tables below summarize the assets and liabilities of the consolidated SPEs as of June 30, 2012 and
March 31, 2012 by type of transferred financial assets that those SPEs hold:
Millions of yen
June 30, 2012
Mortgage
Lease
loans
receivables
receivable
Others
Total
Cash and cash equivalents
4,996
2,550
1,053
8,599
Current portion of financial assets transferred to
consolidated securitization entities
58,170
10,182
8,556
76,908
Financial assets transferred to consolidated
securitization entities
39,543
146,648
1,740
187,931
Current portion of non-recourse borrowings of
consolidated securitization entities：
Loans, mainly from banks
Beneficial interests in trusts

Non-recourse borrowings of
consolidated securitization entities:
Loans, mainly from banks
Beneficial interests in trusts

30,436
23,110
53,546

13,657
13,657

8,148
8,148

30,436
44,915
75,351

1,511
2,740
4,251

119,857
119,857

794
794

1,511
123,391
124,902

Millions of yen
March 31, 2012

Cash and cash equivalents
Current portion of financial assets transferred to
consolidated securitization entities
Financial assets transferred to consolidated
securitization entities

Lease
receivables
4,760

Mortgage
loans
receivable
2,837

Others
1,087

Total
8,684

67,026

10,401

8,644

86,071

51,570

151,826

2,015

205,411

42,207
32,672
74,879

13,928
13,928

8,197
8,197

42,207
54,797
97,004

3,943
4,117
8,060

126,008
126,008

975
975

3,943
131,100
135,043

Current portion of non-recourse borrowings of
consolidated securitization entities：
Loans, mainly from banks
Beneficial interests in trusts

Non-recourse borrowings of
consolidated securitization entities:
Loans, mainly from banks
Beneficial interests in trusts
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The assets and liabilities of the consolidated SPEs on the table above exclude intercompany balances
that are eliminated in consolidation. Substantially, all of the assets of the consolidated SPEs can only
be used to settle obligations of those SPEs.
Transfers to unconsolidated entities
The following information is related to financial assets transferred to unconsolidated entities and
accounted for as sales. Those financial assets are transferred mainly to SPEs sponsored by financial
institutions.
Securitizations of lease receivables:
Hitachi Capital Corporation and certain other subsidiaries sold lease receivables to unconsolidated
SPEs and other entities. During the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, proceeds from the
transfer of lease receivables were ¥32,418 million and ¥24,645 million, respectively, and net gains
recognized on those transfers were ¥1,654 million and ¥1,908 million, respectively. The subsidiaries
retained servicing responsibilities, but did not record a servicing asset or liability because the cost to
service the receivables approximated the servicing income.
The amounts of initial fair value of the subordinated interests for the three months ended June 30, 2012
and 2011 were ¥5,163 million and ¥4,763 million, respectively. The subordinated interests relating to
securitizations of lease receivables are initially classified as Level 3 assets within the fair value
hierarchy. The initial fair value of the subordinated interests is determined based on economic
assumptions including weighted-average life, expected credit risks, and discount rates.
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Quantitative information about delinquencies, net credit losses, and components of lease receivables
subject to transfer and other assets managed together as of and for the three months ended June 30,
2012 and as of and for the year ended March 31, 2012 is as follows:
Millions of yen
June 30, 2012
Principal
amount of
Total
receivables
principal 90 days or
amount of more past Net credit
receivables
due
loss
Total assets managed or transferred:
Lease receivables
Assets transferred
Assets held in portfolio

936,965
(235,018)
701,947

397

80

Millions of yen
March 31, 2012
Principal
amount of
Total
receivables
principal 90 days or
amount of more past Net credit
receivables
due
loss
Total assets managed or transferred:
Lease receivables
Assets transferred
Assets held in portfolio

955,565
(219,914)
735,651

412

588

As of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012, the amounts of the maximum exposures to losses were
¥68,445 million and ¥60,723 million, respectively. They mainly consist of the subordinated interests
and the obligations to purchase assets with a scope that is considerably limited relating to these
securitizations of lease receivables. As of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012, the amounts of the
subordinated interests measured at fair value relating to these securitizations of lease receivables were
¥40,958 million and ¥36,329 million, respectively.
Securitizations of trade receivables:
The Company and certain subsidiaries sold trade receivables mainly to unconsolidated SPEs and other
entities. During the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, proceeds from the transfer of trade
receivables were ¥133,296 million and ¥124,080 million, respectively, and net losses recognized on
those transfers were ¥383 million and ¥67 million, respectively. The Company and certain subsidiaries
retained servicing responsibilities, but did not record a servicing asset or liability because the cost to
service the receivables approximated the servicing income.
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The amount of initial fair value of the subordinated interests for the three months ended June 30, 2012
was ¥6,085 million. The subordinated interests relating to securitizations of trade receivables are
initially classified as Level 3 assets within the fair value hierarchy. The initial fair value of the
subordinated interests is determined based on economic assumptions including weighted-average life,
expected credit risks, discount rates, and prepayment rates.
Quantitative information about delinquencies, net credit loss, and components of trade receivables
subject to transfer and other assets managed together as of and for the three months ended June 30,
2012 and as of and for the year ended March 31, 2012 is as follows:
Millions of yen
June 30, 2012
Principal
amount of
Total
receivables
principal 90 days or
amount of more past Net credit
receivables
due
loss
Total assets managed or transferred:
Trade receivables
Assets transferred
Assets held in portfolio

794,361
(214,551)
579,810

2,380

225

Millions of yen
March 31, 2012
Principal
amount of
Total
receivables
principal 90 days or
amount of more past Net credit
receivables
due
loss
Total assets managed or transferred:
Trade receivables
Assets transferred
Assets held in portfolio

844,698
(233,881)
610,817

2,450

965

As of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012, the amounts of the maximum exposures to losses were
¥39,196 million and ¥45,797 million, respectively. They mainly consist of the subordinated interests
and obligations to purchase assets with a scope that is considerably limited relating to these
securitizations of trade receivables. As of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012, the amounts of the
subordinated interests relating to these securitizations of trade receivables were ¥28,560 million and
¥31,295 million, respectively.
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(6)

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets included in other assets as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012
are as follows:
Millions of yen
March 31, 2012

June 30, 2012
Gross
carrying
amount

Goodwill
Amortized intangible assets:
Software
Software for internal use
Patents
Other

Indefinite-lived
intangible assets

(7)

Accumulated
amortization

Gross
carrying
amount

Accumulated
amortization

Net carrying
amount

209,508

-

209,508

214,707

-

214,707

778,710
539,736
79,213
212,660
1,610,319

644,875
411,655
71,913
101,267
1,229,710

133,835
128,081
7,300
111,393
380,609

774,641
520,971
79,108
213,866
1,588,586

637,462
397,742
70,670
101,407
1,207,281

137,179
123,229
8,438
112,459
381,305

13,832

-

13,832

13,950

-

13,950

Retirement and Severance Benefits
Net periodic benefit cost for the contributory funded benefit pension plans and the unfunded lump-sum
payment plans for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 consists of the following
components:

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets for the period
Amortization of prior service benefit
Amortization of actuarial loss
Transfer to defined contribution pension plan
Employees’ contributions

(8)

Net carrying
amount

Three months ended
June 30, 2012
17,902
11,211
(9,043)
(5,647)
24,259
(104)
(17)
38,561

Millions of yen
Three months ended
June 30, 2011
17,214
13,016
(8,630)
(5,672)
22,237
(499)
(38)
37,628

Common Stock
Issued shares of common stock as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012 are as follows:
June 30,
2012
4,637,813,706

Issued shares of common stock
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Issued shares
March 31,
2012
4,637,785,317
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(9)

Treasury Stock
Shares of treasury stock as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012 are as follows:
June 30,
2012
2,672,896

Shares of treasury stock

Shares
March 31,
2012
2,743,239

(10) Dividends

Decision
The Board of
Directors on
May 10, 2012

Class of
Shares

Cash
dividends
(Millions
of yen)

Common
stock

23,175

Appropriation
from

Cash
dividends
per share
(Yen)

Record
date

5.0

March
31, 2012

Retained
earnings

Effective
Date
May
29, 2012

(11) Equity
The changes in the equity for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows:
Millions of yen
Three months ended June 30, 2012

Balance at beginning of period
Dividends to Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders
Dividends to noncontrolling interests
Equity transactions and other
Comprehensive loss
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
income taxes and reclassification adjustments:
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Pension liability adjustments
Net unrealized holding loss on
available-for-sale securities
Cash flow hedges
Comprehensive loss
Balance at end of period
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Total Hitachi, Ltd.
stockholders’
equity
1,771,782
(23,175)
(3,431)

Noncontrolling
interests
1,002,213
(9,011)
(1,225)

Total equity
2,773,995
(23,175)
(9,011)
(4,656)

7,011

13,369

20,380

(25,256)
14,792

(13,413)
746

(38,669)
15,538

(25,126)
1,692
(26,887)
1,718,289

(2,131)
1,330
(99)
991,878

(27,257)
3,022
(26,986)
2,710,167

HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Millions of yen
Three months ended June 30, 2011

Balance at beginning of period
Dividends to Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders
Dividends to noncontrolling interests
Equity transactions and other
Comprehensive income
Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
income taxes and reclassification adjustments:
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Pension liability adjustments
Net unrealized holding gain on
available-for-sale securities
Cash flow hedges
Comprehensive income
Balance at end of period

Total Hitachi, Ltd.
stockholders’
equity
1,439,865
(13,553)
(1,043)

Noncontrolling
interests
1,001,524
(9,352)
3,213

Total equity
2,441,389
(13,553)
(9,352)
2,170

2,931

13,334

16,265

1,477
12,873

(4,947)
888

(3,470)
13,761

(2,692)
422
15,011
1,440,280

(237)
384
9,422
1,004,807

(2,929)
806
24,433
2,445,087

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of income taxes, as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012
consists of the following:

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Pension liability adjustments
Net unrealized holding gain (loss) on available-for-sale
securities
Cash flow hedges
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
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June 30,
2012
(245,476)
(279,285)

Millions of yen
March 31,
2012
(220,615)
(294,252)

(4,606)
(828)
(530,195)

20,491
(2,520)
(496,896)
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(12) Commitments and Contingencies
The Company and its operating subsidiaries are contingently liable for loan guarantees to its affiliates and
others in the amount of approximately ¥66,293 million as of June 30, 2012.
Hitachi Capital Corporation (HCC) and certain other financial subsidiaries provide guarantees to financial
institutions for extending loans to customers of the subsidiaries. As of June 30, 2012, the undiscounted
maximum potential future payments under such guarantees amounted to ¥341,946 million. For providing
these guarantees, the subsidiaries obtain collateral appropriate for the amount of the guarantees, and
therefore, the Company considers the risk to be low. The Company accrued ¥12,249 million as an
obligation to stand ready to perform over the term of the guarantees in the event the customer cannot make
scheduled payments.
The Company and HCC provide loan commitments to affiliates and others.
The outstanding balance of loan commitments as of June 30, 2012 is as follows:
Millions of yen
10,807
562
10,245

Total commitment available
Less amount utilized
Balance available

The amount of total commitment available in the table above includes lines of credits which require an
additional credit approval prior to funding, and it may not be fully utilized.
The Company and certain subsidiaries have line of credit arrangements with banks in order to secure a
financing source for business operations. The unused lines of credit as of June 30, 2012 amounted to
¥504,157 million, primarily related to unused lines of credit belonging to the Company. The Company
maintains commitment line agreements with a number of banks and pays commitment fees as consideration.
These commitment agreements generally provide a one-year term, and are subject to renewal at the end of
the term. The unused availability under these agreements as of June 30, 2012 amounted to ¥200,000 million.
The Company also maintains another commitment line agreement, whose three years and two months term
ends in May 2013, with financing companies. The unused availability under this agreement as of June 30,
2012 amounted to ¥200,000 million.
It is a common practice in Japan for companies, in the ordinary course of business, to receive promissory
notes in the settlement of trade accounts receivable and to subsequently discount such notes to banks or to
transfer them by endorsement to suppliers in the settlement of accounts payable. As of June 30, 2012 and
March 31, 2012, the Company and subsidiaries were contingently liable for trade notes discounted and
endorsed in the following amounts:
Millions of yen
June 30,
March 31,
2012
2012
Notes discounted
1,640
3,937
Notes endorsed
2,857
2,800
4,497
6,737

A certain subsidiary is contingently liable for the transfer of export receivables with recourse. As of June 30,
2012, the amount of transfer of export receivables with recourse was ¥5,519 million.
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The Company and its subsidiaries provide warranties for certain of their products. The accrued product
warranty costs are based primarily on historical experience of actual warranty claims. The changes in
accrued product warranty costs for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as
follows:
Millions of yen
Three months ended
Three months ended
June 30, 2012
June 30, 2011
Balance at beginning of period
41,356
55,329
Expense recognized upon issuance of
warranties
1,961
4,176
Usage
(2,932)
(4,788)
Acquisitions and divestitures
81
29
Other, including effect of foreign currency
translation
(678)
(32)
Balance at end of period
39,788
54,714
In December 2006, the Company and a subsidiary in Europe received requests for information from the
European Commission, and a former subsidiary in Japan received a grand jury subpoena in connection with
the investigation conducted by the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice, all in respect of
alleged antitrust violations relating to liquid crystal displays. The former Japanese subsidiary paid the fine
in relation to the investigation by the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice in June 2009.
In June 2007, the Company received requests for information from the European Commission in respect of
alleged antitrust violations relating to dynamic random access memories. In May 2010, the European
Commission ordered the Company to pay a fine for infringement of EC antitrust rules. The Company paid
that fine in August 2010.
In November 2007, a subsidiary of the Company in the U.S. received a grand jury subpoena in connection
with the investigation conducted by the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice in respect of
alleged antitrust violations relating to cathode ray tubes. In addition, in November 2007, two subsidiaries in
Asia and in Europe received requests for information from the European Commission. Furthermore, in
November 2007, a subsidiary in Canada received requests for information from the Canadian Competition
Bureau.
In June 2009, a subsidiary of the Company in Japan received a grand jury subpoena in connection with the
investigation conducted by the Antitrust Division of the U.S. Department of Justice and received requests
for information from the European Commission, and a subsidiary of the Company in Korea was
investigated in Singapore by the Competition Commission of Singapore, all in respect of alleged antitrust
violations relating to optical disk drives. In September 2011, the Korean subsidiary received a notice of
discontinuation of the investigation from the Competition Commission of Singapore. In October 2011, the
Japanese subsidiary agreed to pay a fine in relation to the investigation from the Antitrust Division of the
U.S. Department of Justice and in November 2011, it paid that fine. In July 2012, the Japanese subsidiary
received a statement of objections from the European Commission in respect of alleged antitrust violations.
In July 2011, a subsidiary and an affiliated company of the Company in Japan received a statement of
objections from the European Commission in respect of alleged antitrust violations relating to high-voltage
power cables. These companies accrued the reasonably estimated amount for the loss.
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In July 2011, a subsidiary of the Company in Japan was investigated by the Fair Trade Commission of
Japan, a subsidiary in the U.S. was investigated by and received a grand jury subpoena from the Antitrust
Division of the U.S. Department of Justice, the Company and a subsidiary in Europe received requests for
information from the European Commission, and a subsidiary in Canada received requests for information
from the Canadian Competition Bureau, all in respect of alleged antitrust violations relating to automotive
equipment.
The Company and these companies (including a former subsidiary) have cooperated with the competent
authorities in connection with the above matters. Depending upon the outcome of these matters, fines or
surcharge payments, the amount of which is uncertain, may be imposed on them. In addition, subsequent to
these actions by the competent authorities, civil disputes, including class action lawsuits, involving the
Company and some of these companies (including a former subsidiary) have arisen in a number of
countries, including in the U.S. and Canada. A reasonably estimated amount was accrued for the potential
losses in relation to certain of these civil disputes.
Depending upon the outcome of the above legal proceedings, there may be an adverse effect on the
consolidated financial position or results of operations. Currently the Company is unable to estimate the
adverse effect, if any, of many of these proceedings. Accordingly, except as otherwise stated, no accrual for
potential loss has been made. The actual amount of fines, surcharge payments or any other payments
resulting from these legal proceedings may be different from the accrued amounts.
In addition to the above, the Company and certain subsidiaries are subject to several legal proceedings and
claims which have arisen in the ordinary course of business and have not been finally adjudicated. These
actions when ultimately concluded and determined will not, in the opinion of management, have a material
adverse effect on the consolidated financial position or results of operations of the Company and
subsidiaries.
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(13) Restructuring Charges
Certain losses incurred in the reorganization of the Company’s operations are considered restructuring
charges. Components and related amounts of the restructuring charges, before the related tax effects, for
the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Three months ended
June 30, 2012
966
1
967

Special termination benefits
Loss on fixed assets

Millions of yen
Three months ended
June 30, 2011
538
24
562

Certain subsidiaries provided special termination benefits to those employees voluntarily leaving the
companies. The accrued special termination benefits were recognized at the time voluntary termination
was offered and benefits were accepted by the employees. An analysis of the accrued special termination
benefits for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:
Three months ended
June 30, 2012
7,487
966
(7,004)
(29)
1,420

Balance at beginning of the period
New charges
Cash payments
Foreign currency exchange rate changes
Balance at end of the period

Millions of yen
Three months ended
June 30, 2011
3,358
538
(2,027)
3
1,872

(14) Other Income and Other Deductions
The following items are included in other income or other deductions for the three months ended June
30, 2012 and 2011.

Net loss on securities
Net gain on sale and disposal of
rental assets and other property
Exchange loss
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Three months ended
June 30, 2012
(976)

Millions of yen
Three months ended
June 30, 2011
(976)

2,693
(11,743)

6,030
(3,118)
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(15) Net Income Per Share Information
The reconciliations of the numbers and the amounts used in the basic and diluted net income attributable
to Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders per share computations for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011
are as follows:
Number of shares
Three months ended
Three months ended
June 30, 2012
June 30, 2011
Weighted average number of shares on which basic net
income per share is calculated
4,635,033,270
4,517,526,115
Effect of dilutive securities:
Unsecured convertible bonds (due 2014)
195,783,686
313,437,515
Number of shares on which diluted net income per share
is calculated
4,830,816,956
4,830,963,630

Net income attributable to Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders
Effect of dilutive securities:
Unsecured convertible bonds (due 2014)
Other
Net income attributable to Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders
on which diluted net income per share is calculated

Three months ended
June 30, 2012
7,011

Millions of yen
Three months ended
June 30, 2011
2,931

11
(11)

17
(1)

7,011

2,947

Yen
Net income attributable to Hitachi, Ltd. stockholders
per share:
Basic
Diluted

F-23

1.51
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0.61

HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

(16) Concentrations of Credit Risk
The Company and its subsidiaries generally do not have significant concentrations of credit risk to any
counterparties nor any regions because they are diversified and spread globally.
(17) Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
Overall risk profile
The major manufacturing bases of the Company and its subsidiaries are located in Japan and Asia. The
selling bases are located globally, and the Company and its subsidiaries generated approximately 45%
of their sales from overseas for the three months ended June 30, 2012. These overseas sales are mainly
denominated in the U.S. dollar or Euro. As a result, the Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to
market risks from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
The Company’s financing subsidiaries in the U.K., the U.S. and Singapore issue variable rate
medium-term notes mainly through the Euro markets to finance their overseas long-term operating
capital. As a result, the Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to market risks from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.
The Company and its subsidiaries are also exposed to credit-related losses in the event of
non-performance by counterparties to derivative financial instruments, but it is not expected that any
counterparties will fail to meet their obligations because most of the counterparties are internationally
recognized financial institutions that are rated A or higher and contracts are diversified into a number
of major financial institutions.
The Company and its subsidiaries have an insignificant amount of derivative instruments containing
credit-risk-related contingent features, such as provisions that require the Company’s debt to maintain
an investment grade credit rating from each of the major credit rating agencies.
Risk management policy
The Company and its subsidiaries assess foreign currency exchange rate risk and interest rate risk by
continually monitoring changes in these exposures and by evaluating hedging opportunities. It is the
Company’s principal policy that the Company and its subsidiaries do not enter into derivative financial
instruments for speculation purposes.
Foreign currency exchange rate risk management
The Company and its subsidiaries have assets and liabilities which are exposed to foreign currency
exchange rate risk and, as a result, they enter into forward exchange contracts and cross currency swap
agreements for the purpose of hedging these risk exposures.
In order to fix the future net cash flows principally from trade receivables and payables recognized,
which are denominated in foreign currencies, the Company and its subsidiaries on a monthly basis
measure the volume and due date of future net cash flows by currency. In accordance with the
Company’s policy, a certain portion of measured net cash flows is covered using forward exchange
contracts, which principally mature within one year.
The Company and its subsidiaries enter into cross currency swap agreements with the same maturities as
underlying debt to fix cash flows from long-term debt denominated in foreign currencies. The hedging
relationship between the derivative financial instrument and its hedged item is highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in foreign currency exchange rates.
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Interest rate risk management
The Company’s and certain subsidiaries’ exposure to interest rate risk is related principally to
long-term debt obligations. Management believes it is prudent to minimize the variability caused by
interest rate risk.
To meet this objective, the Company and certain subsidiaries principally enter into interest rate swaps
to manage fluctuations in cash flows. The interest rate swaps entered into are receive-variable,
pay-fixed interest rate swaps. Under the interest rate swaps, the Company and certain subsidiaries
receive variable interest rate payments on long-term debt associated with medium-term notes and make
fixed interest rate payments, thereby creating fixed interest rate long-term debt.
Certain financing subsidiaries mainly finance a portion of their operations using long-term debt with a
fixed interest rate and lend funds at variable interest rates. Therefore, such companies are exposed to
interest rate risk. Management believes it is prudent to minimize the variability caused by interest rate
risk. To meet this objective, certain financing subsidiaries principally enter into interest rate swaps
converting the fixed rate to a variable rate to manage fluctuations in fair value resulting from interest
rate risk. Under the interest rate swaps, certain financing subsidiaries receive fixed interest rate
payments associated with long-term debt, including medium-term notes, and make variable interest rate
payments, thereby creating variable-rate long-term debt.
The hedging relationship between the interest rate swaps and its hedged item is highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in cash flows and fair value resulting from interest rate risk.
Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of both recognized assets and liabilities, and derivative financial instruments
designated as fair value hedges of these assets and liabilities are recognized in other income
(deductions). Derivative financial instruments designated as fair value hedges include forward
exchange contracts associated with operating transactions, cross currency swap agreements and interest
rate swaps associated with financing transactions.
Cash flow hedge
Foreign currency exposure:
Changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts designated and qualifying as cash flow hedges
of forecasted transactions are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI). These
amounts are reclassified into earnings in the same period as the hedged items affect earnings.
Interest rate exposure:
Changes in fair values of interest rate swaps designated as hedging instruments for the variability of cash
flows associated with long-term debt obligations are reported in AOCI. These amounts subsequently are
reclassified into interest charges as a yield adjustment in the same period in which the hedged debt
obligations affect earnings.
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(18) Fair Value
ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the use of observable inputs in markets over
the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value as follows:
Level 1
Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
Level 2
Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices associated with
transactions that are not distressed for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not
active; or valuations whose significant inputs are derived from or corroborated by observable market
data.
Level 3
Valuations using inputs that are not observable.
Investments in debt and equity securities
Investment securities of which quoted market prices are available to determine their fair value are
included in Level 1. Level 1 securities include available-for-sale securities such as listed stocks on
exchange markets, debt securities such as Japan treasury bonds and U.S. treasury bonds and exchange
traded funds.
In the absence of an active market for investment securities, quoted prices for similar investment
securities, quoted prices associated with transactions that are not distressed for identical or similar
investment securities or other relevant information including market interest rate curves, referenced
credit spreads or default rates, are used to determine fair value. These investments are included in
Level 2. Level 2 securities include short-term investments and available-for-sale securities such as
listed stocks traded over-the-counter, investment funds and debt securities traded over-the-counter.
In infrequent circumstances, the significant inputs of fair value for investment securities are
unobservable and such investment are included in Level 3. The Company uses price information
provided by financial institutions to evaluate these investments while corroborating the information
mainly with prices estimated using an income approach based on its own valuation models or a market
approach such as comparison with prices of similar securities. Level 3 securities include
available-for-sale securities such as subordinated debentures and structured bonds with little market
activity.
Derivatives
Closing prices are used for derivatives included in Level 1, which are traded on active markets. The
majority of derivatives are traded on over-the-counter markets, which the Company does not deem to
represent active markets. Derivative assets and liabilities for which fair value is based on quoted prices
associated with transactions that are not distressed, in markets that are not active, or based on models
using interest rate curves and forward and spot prices for currencies and commodities are included in
Level 2. Derivatives included in Level 2 primarily consist of interest rate swaps, cross-currency swaps
and foreign currency and commodity forward and option contracts. In infrequent circumstances, the
significant inputs of fair value are unobservable and the Company mainly uses an income or market
approach to corroborate relevant information provided by financial institutions. These derivatives are
included in Level 3.
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Subordinated interests resulting from securitization
When fair value is determined using observable inputs, including prices of recent transactions in
markets that are not distressed, subordinated interests are included in Level 2. When significant inputs
are not observable, fair value is determined based on economic assumptions used in measuring the fair
value of the subordinated interests, including weighted-average life, expected credit risks, and discount
rates, and the subordinated interests are included in Level 3.
The Company uses its own valuation models to evaluate these investments categorized within Level 3
and periodically reviews the appropriateness of consistent application of the models as well as updating
of the inputs in consideration of recent changes in economic conditions. The Company also analyses
that the sensitivity in the valuation of these investments does not have material adverse effects on the
consolidated financial statements.
The following tables present the assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis and the fair value hierarchy classification as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012. The carrying
values on the consolidated balance sheets are recorded by the fair value of these assets and liabilities.

Total
Assets:
Investments in securities
Equity securities
Government debt securities
Corporate debt securities
Other
Derivatives
Subordinated interests resulting
from securitization
Liabilities:
Derivatives

181,467
5,633
28,442
7,505
21,637

180,737
5,628
7,137
-

730
5
5,700
368
21,637

22,742
-

68,136
312,820

193,502

28,440

68,136
90,878

(5,927)

-

(5,927)

-

Total
Assets:
Investments in securities
Equity securities
Government debt securities
Corporate debt securities
Other
Derivatives
Subordinated interests resulting
from securitization
Liabilities:
Derivatives

Millions of yen
June 30, 2012
Fair value hierarchy classification
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

Millions of yen
March 31, 2012
Fair value hierarchy classification
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

220,491
4,781
31,686
7,551
10,891

219,748
4,776
7,192
-

743
5
7,422
359
10,891

24,264
-

66,313
341,713

231,716

19,420

66,313
90,577

(21,978)

-

(21,978)

-
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The following tables present the changes in Level 3 instruments measured on a recurring basis for the
three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.

Balance at beginning of period
Purchases
Settlements
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized)
Included in earnings (a)
Included in other comprehensive loss
Balance at end of period
The amount of total gains or losses for the period
included in earnings attributable to the change in
unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at
June 30, 2012

Millions of yen
Three months ended June 30, 2012
Subordinated
interests
Corporate
resulting
debt
from
securities
securitization
Total
24,264
66,313
90,577
10,529
10,529
(1,390)
(5,998)
(7,388)
(132)
22,742

94
(2,802)
68,136

94
(2,934)
90,878

-

-

-

(a) Level 3 gains and losses (realized and unrealized) included in earnings for the three months ended
June 30, 2012 are reported in revenue.

Balance at beginning of period
Purchases
Sales
Settlements
Total gains or losses (realized/unrealized)
Included in earnings (a)
Included in other comprehensive income (loss)
Balance at end of period
The amount of total gains or losses for the period
included in earnings attributable to the change in
unrealized gains or losses relating to assets still held at
June 30, 2011

Corporate
debt
securities
32,926
1,818
(800)
(3,800)
(304)
182
30,022

(300)

Millions of yen
Three months ended June 30, 2011
Subordinated
interests
resulting
from
securitization
Total
34,066
66,992
6,757
8,575
(800)
(2,887)
(6,687)
54
(482)
37,508

-

(250)
(300)
67,530

(300)

(a) Level 3 gains and losses (realized and unrealized) included in earnings for the three months ended
June 30, 2011 are reported in other income (deductions) for corporate debt securities and are
reported in revenue for subordinated interests resulting from securitization.
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(19) Financing Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
The Company classifies financing receivables aggregated and categorized as finance leases, installment
loans, mortgage loans, and other financing receivables, based on the nature of risks and characteristics
as described below.
Financing receivables from equipment leases, installment arrangements, mortgage loans, and other
receivables with a contractual maturity of one year or more are subject to disclosure as reported in this
note. Trade receivables from sale of products or services that have contractual maturities of one year or
less are excluded from this note. Finance lease receivables are recorded based on the total minimum
payments to be received and unguaranteed residual values less executory costs and unearned income.
Installment loans, mortgage loans and other financing receivables are reported on the amortized cost
basis.
Finance leases are receivables from lease arrangements, including products manufactured by the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries, such as information technology equipment, manufacturing
machinery and equipment and construction machinery, typically secured by underlying assets. The
primary locations of finance leases are Japan, United States, United Kingdom and China mainland. The
lease term ranges mainly from three to six years. The non-specific allowance for doubtful receivables is
collectively determined on the basis of past collection experience, consideration of current economic
conditions and changes in our customer collection trends as well as other factors that may affect the
customers’ ability to pay.
Installment loans represent receivables from arrangements with customers and dealers to provide
financing primarily for products manufactured by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, such as
manufacturing machinery. Installment loans are typically secured by underlying assets. The primary
locations of installment loans are Japan, United States, United Kingdom and China mainland. The loan
term is generally less than three years. The non-specific allowance is collectively determined on the
basis of past collection experience, consideration of current economic conditions and changes in our
customer collection trends as well as other factors that may affect the customers’ ability to pay.
Mortgage loans are financing receivables from residential loan arrangements for individuals. Mortgage
loans are usually arranged with collateral. The location of mortgage loans is Japan; more than fifty
percent of mortgage loans are arranged for employees of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries.
The term of mortgage loans is usually less than 30 years. The non-specific allowance is collectively
determined on the basis of past collection experience, consideration of current economic conditions and
changes in our customer collection trends as well as other factors that may affect the customers’ ability
to pay.
Other financing receivables are the financing service receivables provided by the subsidiaries in the
financial services segment such as factoring, loan servicing, and other forms of commercial financing.
The contractual maturities associated with those services generally range over one to three years. The
non-specific allowance is collectively determined on the basis of past collection experience,
consideration of current economic conditions and changes in our customer collection trends as well as
other factors that may affect the customers’ ability to pay.
In addition, common to all financing receivables, the Company and its subsidiaries individually evaluate
collectability of financing receivables either by discounted cash flow analyses when they determine
principal and interest of a financing receivable cannot be collected or by estimating the fair value of
related collateral when applicable and further estimating the allowance for doubtful receivables. The
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Company and its subsidiaries have proprietary credit quality indicators appropriate to the unique
characteristics of their operations and the nature of their financing receivable portfolios. Based on such
indicators as the duration of overdue payments, the unpaid amounts, the existence of extended payment
terms, evaluation by third-party credit agencies, and the degree of debtors’ excessive debt, the Company
and its subsidiaries classify and monitor their financial receivables into two categories: the individually
evaluated receivables, and the collectively evaluated receivables.
Interest income for long-term financing receivables is recognized on the accrual basis.
As of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012, financing receivables include past due receivables in the
amount of ¥15,750 million and ¥14,426 million, respectively. Of these amounts, financing receivables
past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest amounted to ¥3,027 million and ¥2,918 million,
respectively.
The following tables present the allowance for doubtful receivables and recorded investment in
financing receivables as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and changes in the allowance for the three months
ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
Millions of yen
June 30, 2012
Finance
leases
Allowance for doubtful
receivables
Balance, March 31, 2012
Provision
Recovery and other
Write off
Balance, June 30, 2012
Applicable to amounts;
Individually evaluated
for impairment
Applicable to amounts;
Collectively evaluated
for impairment
Financing receivables
Balance, June 30, 2012
Applicable to amounts;
Individually evaluated
for impairment
Applicable to amounts;
Collectively evaluated
for impairment

Installment
loans

Mortgage
loans

Other
financing
receivables

Total

7,680
1,359
(495)
(91)
8,453

1,912
450
(205)
(200)
1,957

210
36
(34)
(1)
211

6,509
619
(433)
(276)
6,419

16,311
2,464
(1,167)
(568)
17,040

3,514

770

85

4,298

8,667

4,939

1,187

126

2,121

8,373

710,400

149,548

185,454

224,807

1,270,209

9,828

1,098

172

8,477

19,575

700,572

148,450

185,282

216,330

1,250,634
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Millions of yen
June 30, 2011
Finance
leases
Allowance for doubtful
receivables
Balance, March 31, 2011
Provision
Recovery and other
Write off
Balance, June 30, 2011
Applicable to amounts;
Individually evaluated
for impairment
Applicable to amounts;
Collectively evaluated
for impairment
Financing receivables
Balance, June 30, 2011
Applicable to amounts;
Individually evaluated
for impairment
Applicable to amounts;
Collectively evaluated
for impairment

Installment
loans

Mortgage
loans

Other
financing
receivables

Total

6,136
1,176
(1,164)
(139)
6,009

2,420
570
(446)
(202)
2,342

231
74
(126)
179

7,842
1,252
(515)
(505)
8,074

16,629
3,072
(2,251)
(846)
16,604

1,845

992

94

4,734

7,665

4,164

1,350

85

3,340

8,939

824,656

123,699

211,843

215,384

1,375,582

7,223

2,088

1,178

9,566

20,055

817,433

121,611

210,665

205,818

1,355,527

In addition, as of June 30, 2012 and March 31, 2012, the amounts of impaired loans relating to
receivables which arose from sales of products or services are ¥37,465 million and ¥42,729 million,
respectively.

F-31

HITACHI, LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2012

(20) Acquisitions and Divestitures
On March 9, 2011, Hitachi Transport System, Ltd. (Hitachi Transport System), a subsidiary of the
Company included in the Others category of segment information, announced its decision to purchase
shares of Vantec Corporation (Vantec), through a tender offer to make Vantec its subsidiary. The tender
offer price was ¥233,500 per share, which was determined by taking into consideration the market price
of Vantec’s common stock, Vantec’s financial condition, future earnings prospects and a valuation of
Vantec stock conducted by a third party appraiser. The price included a premium of approximately 93%
over the average share price of Vantec’s common stock traded on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock
Exchange for the three month period ended March 8, 2011. As a result, Hitachi Transport System
purchased 209,550 shares in the tender offer, for ¥48,930 million in the period from March 10, 2011
through April 19, 2011, resulting in an acquisition of 90.12% of the voting rights. Accordingly, Hitachi
Transport System obtained control of Vantec and it became a consolidated subsidiary effective April 26,
2011, the settlement date of the tender offer (the acquisition date).
Vantec operates warehousing and transportation related business. Hitachi Transport System made the
acquisition to realize synergy in the system logistics and global business and improve the enterprise
value of Hitachi Transport System and Vantec.
The following table summarizes the consideration paid for Vantec, the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed and recognized as of the acquisition date, as well as the fair value as of the acquisition date of
the noncontrolling interest in Vantec.

Current assets
Non-current assets (excluding intangible assets)
Intangible assets
Goodwill (not deductible for tax purposes)
Other intangible assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Cash paid for acquisition
Fair value of noncontrolling interests

Millions of yen
35,551
28,090
14,837
29,197
107,675
(31,493)
(23,630)
(55,123)
(48,930)
(3,622)
(52,552)

The following table shows the acquired intangible assets subject to amortization.
Weighted average
amortization
Millions of yen
The acquired intangible assets subject to
amortization
Customer relationships

29,197

period (year)
17

The fair value of the noncontrolling interest in Vantec, a listed entity, was determined by quoted market
price and included in Level 1.
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The results of operations of Vantec for the period from the acquisition date to June 30, 2011 were not
material.
On a pro forma basis, revenue, net income attributable to Hitachi, Ltd. and the per share information of
the Company with assumed acquisition date for Vantec of April 1, 2010 would not differ materially
from the amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements as of and for the three
months ended June 30, 2011.
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(21) Segment Information
The operating segments of the Company are the components for which separate financial information is
available and for which segment profit or loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the chief operating
decision maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The Company has
aggregated certain operating segments into reportable segments for reporting purpose, since such
aggregation helps financial statement users better understand the Company’s performance.
The reportable segments correspond to categories of activities classified primarily by markets, products
and services.
The Company discloses its business in ten reportable segments: Information & Telecommunication
Systems, Power Systems, Social Infrastructure & Industrial Systems, Electronic Systems & Equipment,
Construction Machinery, High Functional Materials & Components, Automotive Systems, Digital
Media & Consumer Products, Financial Services, and Others.
The primary products and services included in each segment are as follows:
Information & Telecommunication Systems:
Systems integration, Outsourcing services, Software, Disk array subsystems, Servers, Mainframes,
Telecommunication equipment and ATMs
Power Systems:
Thermal power generation systems, Nuclear power generation systems, Hydroelectric power generation
systems and Wind power generation systems
Social Infrastructure & Industrial Systems:
Industrial machinery and plants, Elevators, Escalators and Railway systems
Electronic Systems & Equipment:
Semiconductor and LCDs manufacturing equipment, Test and measurement equipment, Medical
electronics equipment, Power tools and Electronic parts manufacturing system
Construction Machinery:
Hydraulic excavators, Wheel loaders and Mining dump trucks
High Functional Materials & Components:
Wires and cables, Copper products, Semiconductor and display related materials, Circuit boards and
materials, Specialty steels, Magnetic materials and components and High grade casting components and
materials
Automotive Systems:
Engine management systems, Electric powertrain systems, Drive control systems and Car information
systems
Digital Media & Consumer Products:
Optical disk drives, Flat-panel TVs, LCD projectors, Room air conditioners, Refrigerators, Washing
machines and Air-conditioning equipment
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Financial Services:
Leasing and Loan guarantees
Others:
Logistics, Information storage media, Batteries, Property management and others
Effective April 1, 2012, due to the sale of Hard disk drives and LCDs businesses, the Company
eliminated the Components & Devices segment. The businesses, which were previously included in the
Components & Devices segment, have been included in the Others. The corresponding data for the three
months ended June 30, 2011 have been restated to conform with the change.
The following tables show segment information for the three months ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
Revenues from Outside Customers

Information & Telecommunication Systems
Power Systems
Social Infrastructure & Industrial Systems
Electronic Systems & Equipment
Construction Machinery
High Functional Materials & Components
Automotive Systems
Digital Media & Consumer Products
Financial Services
Others
Subtotal
Corporate items
Total
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Three months
ended June 30,
2012

Millions of yen
Three months
ended June 30,
2011

331,165
170,050
200,677
217,294
197,962
325,774
204,334
199,631
83,460
190,232
2,120,579
136
2,120,715

312,282
151,590
191,922
215,543
171,652
327,452
166,108
214,444
82,607
316,399
2,149,999
694
2,150,693
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Revenues from Intersegment Transactions
Three months
ended June 30,
2012
Information & Telecommunication Systems
Power Systems
Social Infrastructure & Industrial Systems
Electronic Systems & Equipment
Construction Machinery
High Functional Materials & Components
Automotive Systems
Digital Media & Consumer Products
Financial Services
Others
Subtotal
Eliminations and Corporate items
Total

40,471
20,524
37,396
27,965
1,080
17,385
668
18,921
11,170
88,333
263,913
(263,913)
-

Millions of yen
Three months
ended June 30,
2011
38,514
14,759
37,908
30,585
863
19,623
962
18,691
9,869
98,448
270,222
(270,222)
-

Total Revenues
Three months
ended June 30,
2012
Information & Telecommunication Systems
Power Systems
Social Infrastructure & Industrial Systems
Electronic Systems & Equipment
Construction Machinery
High Functional Materials & Components
Automotive Systems
Digital Media & Consumer Products
Financial Services
Others
Subtotal
Eliminations and Corporate items
Total

371,636
190,574
238,073
245,259
199,042
343,159
205,002
218,552
94,630
278,565
2,384,492
(263,777)
2,120,715
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Millions of yen
Three months
ended June 30,
2011
350,796
166,349
229,830
246,128
172,515
347,075
167,070
233,135
92,476
414,847
2,420,221
(269,528)
2,150,693
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Segment Profit (Loss)
Three months
ended June 30,
2012

Millions of yen
Three months
ended June 30,
2011

Information & Telecommunication Systems
Power Systems
Social Infrastructure & Industrial Systems
Electronic Systems & Equipment
Construction Machinery
High Functional Materials & Components
Automotive Systems
Digital Media & Consumer Products
Financial Services
Others
Subtotal
Eliminations and Corporate items
Total Segment profit

(1,408)
2,485
(2,034)
9,538
14,108
20,011
9,327
17
7,250
8,948
68,242
(4,668)
63,574

2,102
(3,225)
969
7,196
11,037
19,358
2,919
3,288
6,902
9,913
60,459
(8,056)
52,403

Impairment losses for long-lived assets
Restructuring charges
Interest income
Dividends income
Other income
Interest charges
Other deductions
Equity in net loss of affiliated
companies
Income before income taxes

(252)
(967)
3,680
2,624
3,153
(7,051)
(12,889)

(31)
(562)
3,850
3,058
6,030
(7,033)
(4,237)

(3,006)
48,866

(12,324)
41,154

Intersegment transactions are recorded at the same prices used in transactions with third parties.
Corporate items include unallocated corporate expenses, such as leading edge R&D expenditures, and
others.
As discussed in note 2(e), effective April 1, 2012, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries changed
their depreciation method. As a result of this change, compared to the previous method, segment profit
was increased by ¥102 million in the Information & Telecommunication Systems segment, ¥461 million
in the Power Systems segment, ¥78 million in the Electronic Systems & Equipment segment, ¥294
million in the Construction Machinery segment, ¥390 million in the High Functional Materials &
Components segment, ¥215 million in the Automotive Systems segment, ¥26 million in the Digital
Media & Consumer Products segment, ¥2 million in Financial Services segment and ¥109 million in the
Others, and decreased by ¥13 million in the Social Infrastructure & Industrial Systems segment and ¥79
million in the Eliminations and Corporate items.
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1. Matters Related to Adequacy of Statements Contained in the Annual Securities Report
Mr. Hiroaki Nakanishi, President, and Mr. Toyoaki Nakamura, Executive Vice President and
Executive Officer, confirmed that statements contained in the Quarterly Report for the first quarter of
144th fiscal year (from April 1, 2012 to June 30, 2012) were adequate under the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Act.
2. Special Notes
None.
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